
From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
To: Spencer Austin <spenceraustin@agutah.gov>
Cc: Sean Reyes <seanreyes@agutah.gov>

Subject: DCAO Reliance on Utah AG's Office Assertions RE O.U.R. and Tim Ballard et al
Date: Tue, 28 Mar 2023 10:33:55 -0600

Importance: Normal
Attachments: Davis_County_Mail_-_OUR_funds.pdf

Mr. Austin and Mr. Reyes,

At this point the State of Utah, via Davis County, will not have to subpoena or call any witnesses, including
employees and former employees (such as Jessica Farnsworth or Patty Reed) of the UAGO, at the May 3-5th
hearing. It is anticipated that the hearing will be vacated. As a result, I am withdrawing the request to meet
in advance for preparation. 

That being said, in order to bring matters to a complete conclusion on our end, the DCAO is once again
requesting the material Investigative Bureau Chief Craig Webb emailed about on December 22, 2022 (see
attached). 

I am willing to explain why this is important to both of our offices if you would like to meet about this
request. 
Our objective is to conclude the involvement of Davis County in this and related matters. 

Very Best and Thank You in advance,

Troy Rawlings

Davis County Attorney

801-451-4300

troy@co.davis.ut.us

*Please forgive any errors as they are likely due to my regular use of speech-to-text* 

“The qualities of a good prosecutor are as elusive and as impossible to define as those which make a gentleman. And those who
need to be told would not understand it anyway. A sensitiveness to fair play and sportsmanship is perhaps the best protection
against the abuse of power, and the citizens safety lies in the prosecutor who tempers zeal with human kindness, who seeks truth
and not victims, who serves the law and not factional purposes, and who approaches his task with humility.” United States Supreme Court
Justice Robert H. Jackson, April 1, 1940
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From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
To: Spencer Austin <spenceraustin@agutah.gov>

Subject: CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION - UNDER SEAL
Date: Thu, 9 Feb 2023 07:00:58 -0700

Importance: Normal
Attachments: 7_Gala.pdf; Rescue_of_Gardy_in_Haiti_summary.pdf; 6_David_Lopez.pdf;

Carlos_Rodriguez_Email_September_16_2020.pdf;
4_Tim_Ballard_The_Mission_is_What_I_Say_it_Is_CNF_Janet_Russon.pdf;
Cherstyn_Stockwell_RE_OUR_Tim_Ballard.pdf;
Cabo_San_Lucas_and_Paul_Hutchinson.pdf

Mr. Reyes and Mr. Austin,

CONFIDENTIAL EMAIL AND ATTACHMENTS FOR YOUR 2 EYES ONLY 

Certain litigation is taking place under seal with respect to 
Mr. Timothy Ballard and Operation Underground Railroad (O.U.R.). 

A very small sliver of over 2tb of information / evidence is attached to
give you a flavor of some of the issues...with a 2nd email that has a Janet Russon "Reading"
attached. Janet Russon talks to dead Mormon leaders, particularly a Mormon
Prophet from 600BC named Nephi, to get intel on where to find Gardy Mardy
in particular, but also with respect to a slew of other things. As I understand it, 
we have somewhere around 10,000 pages of Janet Russon "Readings" as part 
of the investigator case file. Donors are not made aware that Nephi, via Mr. Russon, is the 
key piece of O.U.R. Operational intelligence. 

Will you please make note of the following:

There is a hearing set for May 3-4 (two days). It is anticipated that one or both sides will seek the testimony
of Alan White, Sean Reyes and Spencer Austin. 

This email is a courtesy notification for scheduling and a request to meet about this matter. 

In anticipation of our meeting, I want to provide you with a few things in the utmost confidence and
am placing my trust that you will not discuss what I am providing to you with OUR, Tim Ballard or any counsel
for OUR other than at the hearing as needed. 

No charges have been filed yet so we are not in a stage where discovery applies, however some (not all) of
the attached material has been provided to defense counsel as we have had discussions, unfortunately
unproductive, to try and resolve this case up front. 

Best, 

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
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3/28/23, 10:25 AM Davis County Mail - OUR funds

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/? k=9a67947287&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1752944625588100675%7Cmsg-f:1752944625588100675… 1/1

Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>

OUR funds
1 me age

Craig Webb <cwebb@co.davis.ut.us> Thu, Dec 22, 2022 at 12:44 PM
To: Alan White <alanwhite@agutah.gov>
Cc  Leo Lucy llucey@agutah gov , pencerau tin@agutah gov, Troy Rawling  troy@co davi ut u

Good afternoon,
In regards to the phone conversation earlier today, can you provide me with the accounting that you referred to, showing
how the Davis County Attorney's Office received just Operation Underground Railroad doner money in response to our
ICAC Ta k Force Program grant application

In addition, was it just the Davis County Attorney's Office who received all Operation Underground Railroad money or did
all Davis County ICAC affiliates receive them?

 
Bureau Chief
Davis County Attorney’s Office
801 451-3509
800 W  State St
Farmington UT 84025

cwebb@co.davis.ut.us
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From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
To: Sean Reyes <seanreyes@agutah.gov>, Spencer Austin <spenceraustin@agutah.gov>

Subject: Fwd: CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION - UNDER SEAL
Date: Thu, 9 Feb 2023 07:03:36 -0700

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

Forgot to include AG Reyes on this email the first time...
Another email about to be sent to both of you. 

Best,
Troy 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
Date: Thu, Feb 9, 2023 at 7:00 AM
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

Subject: Fwd: Janet Russon Audio Sample Reading attached
Date: Thu, 9 Feb 2023 07:05:15 -0700

Importance: Normal
Attachments: BR-JR-01-00108_tim_as_ceo_5-2.pdf; BR-JR-01-00109_nephi_to_tim_CEO_5-2.wav

CONFIDENTIAL FYI 2 TODAY WITH THE SAME RESTRICTIONS AS THE PRIOR EMAIL.

Note, this particular email (with the 2 attachments) was sent to counsel for Tim Ballard and OUR, but I am
still sending this to you confidentially. 

Troy 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
Date: Fri, Feb 3, 2023 at 3:32 PM
Subject: Janet Russon Audio Sample Reading attached
To: Melendres, James P. <jmelendres@swlaw.com>, Karen P. Hewitt <kphewitt@jonesday.com>, Alessandra
Serano <alessandra@ourrescue.org>, Gilson, James D. <james.gilson@dentons.com>, Brent A. Andrewsen
<baandrewsen@hollandhart.com>

Came across while looking for other items:

To give you a flavor of a relatively benign Janet Russon "Reading" she provided to Tim Ballard. Janet
purportedly receives such revelations to direct operations money is solicited for. 

Context:
Nephi, (to Mormon's who believe), was an ancient Book of Mormon prophet who lived approximately 600 BC.
Nephi is the individual who provides intel for the Gardy Mardy location / operations in particular. 

The Elder Maxwell mentioned who gives the microphone to Nephi at some point is, we believe, a latter day
Mormon apostle who died in 2004. 

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
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OFFICE OF THE UTAH ATTORNEY GENERAL  

INTERNAL CONFLICT SCREEN 

 

To: Sean D. Reyes, Attorney General; 
 Spencer E. Austin, Chief Criminal Deputy; 
 Ric Cantrell, Chief of Staff; 

Daniel Burton, Chief of Policy and Legislative Affairs;  
Craig L. Barlow, Criminal Deputy/Director, Justice Division; 

 Leo Lucey, Director, Investigations Division; 
 Chris Earl, Director of Information and Technology; and 

Aaron Jones, Supervisory Special Agent, Special Investigations and Public Corruption 
Unit, Investigation Division. 

 
From: Craig L. Barlow, Criminal Deputy/Director, Justice Division. 
 
Re: Tim Ballard and Operation Underground Railroad 
 
Date: December 23, 2020 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The Utah Attorney General’s Office (AGO) is aware of a criminal investigation by the 
Davis County Attorney (DCA) and the Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI) involving Tim 
Ballard and an organization with which he is associated, Operation Underground Railroad 
(OUR).  Attorney General Sean Reyes and his Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell both have a personal 
relationship with Ballard and OUR.  It may be necessary for the AGO to have some involvement 
with the DCA/FBI regarding its investigation and possible prosecution of Ballard and/or OUR.  
Accordingly, there is created a conflict screen with Attorney General Sean Reyes and Chief of 
Staff Ric Cantrell on one side and the rest of the AGO on the other.  Any communication 
between DCA/FBI and the AGO regarding Ballard and OUR will be through Chief Criminal 
Deputy Spencer Austin and his designees in the AGO.  Chief Criminal Deputy Spencer Austin 
will not communicate in any fashion with Attorney General Sean Reyes and Chief of Staff Ric 
Cantrell regarding his discussions with the DCA/FBI regarding the Ballard and OUR matter.  
 
 Communication Forbidden.  Investigators and prosecutors in the AGO shall not 
communicate by any means with Attorney General Sean Reyes or Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell 
regarding the DCA/FBI investigation or prosecution of the matter.  Attorney General Sean Reyes 
and Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell shall not communicate with investigators, prosecutors, or Chief 
Criminal Deputy Spencer Austin, by any means, directly or indirectly, regarding the DCA/FBI 
investigation or prosecution.  Further, Attorney General Sean Reyes and Chief of Staff Ric 
Cantrell shall not communicate, by any means, with any person known to Attorney General Sean 
Reyes and Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell to be a witness or potential witness in the Ballard and/or 
OUR matter. 
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 Consultation with Persons Not Screened by this Memorandum.  No consultation with 
an employee of the AGO who is not on either side of the conflict screen described here, or any 
other person, shall occur without first providing a copy of this conflict screen memorandum to 
the person and advising the person that he/she is thereafter on the same side of the screen as the 
person consulting with them. 
 
 Sequestration of Physical and Electronic Files.  Members of the investigation and 
prosecution teams, plus Chief Criminal Deputy Spencer Austin shall keep all files, physical and 
electronic, confidential from Attorney General Sean Reyes and Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell.  A 
copy of this memorandum shall be provided to the current manager of the AGO’s Information 
and Technology Section to ensure that all electronic files are screened from Attorney General 
Sean Reyes and Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell.  
 
 Supervision.  Chief Criminal Deputy Spencer Austin shall be the supervisor of this 
matter.  
 
 Captions.  No document caption prepared or filed in this matter shall contain the names 
of Attorney General Sean Reyes or Chief of Staff Ric Cantrell.  
 
 Notification.  Chief Criminal Deputy Spencer Austin shall ensure that copies of this 
memorandum are included in the physical and electronic files regarding this matter. 
 
 Acknowledgement. All parties to this memorandum must, by return of electronic mail, 
acknowledge receipt of this memorandum and agree to comply with its terms.  
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From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
To: Sean Reyes <seanreyes@agutah.gov>, Spencer Austin <spenceraustin@agutah.gov>

Subject: Re: Janet Russon Reading / Prophesy / PowerPoint Requested
Date: Mon, 13 Mar 2023 09:47:11 -0600

Importance: Normal

Gentlemen,

I would like to dialogue with you asap on this matter and thank you in advance.
It is important we meet and I believe you will find it a positive and productive step to assisting DCAO in
resolving the O.U.R. scenario. 

Very Best Regards,
 

Troy 

*Please forgive any errors as they are likely due to my regular use of speech-to-text* 

On Thu, Feb 9, 2023 at 7:12 AM Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us> wrote:
One more FYI for additional Janet Russon context, same restrictions / request for confidentiality as the prior
emails today. 

Note if you listen to it all, purported Nephi's (via Janet) counsel to Tim on the Organizational structure of
O.U.R. at that point in time...fascinating. 

What do you think donors would / will do upon learning that deceased ancient Book of Mormon Prophet
Nephi actually runs O.U.R. via Janet Russon to Tim and Katherine Ballard?

Thank you, 
 

Troy 

*Please forgive any errors as they are likely due to my regular use of speech-to-text* 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Troy Rawlings <troy@co.davis.ut.us>
Date: Sat, Feb 4, 2023 at 8:43 AM
Subject: Janet Russon Reading / Prophesy / PowerPoint Requested
To: Alessandra Serano <alessandra@ourrescue.org>, Karen P. Hewitt <kphewitt@jonesday.com>, Melendres,
James P. <jmelendres@swlaw.com>, Gilson, James D. <james.gilson@dentons.com>, Brent A. Andrewsen
<baandrewsen@hollandhart.com>

During what will be a weekend long process of reviewing as much as I can from your binder and other
material I have access to before making the type of case related determinations this coming Monday you
requested yesterday, I came across this I was not previously informed about among the Janet Russon
Readings that at least made me smile (attached).

The primary purpose for this email: would you be willing to email me the powerpoint from yesterday's
meeting? I do not think Bryan Purdy will be available or in a reasonable condition to go through it with me
this weekend or even on Monday, but importantly I would like to walk through it with my Investigative
Bureau Chief Craig Webb tomorrow (Sunday) or early Monday morning. Frankly, the powerpoint will be far
more helpful to me than the binder in what I want to discuss with Mr. Webb in a succinct yet informative
fashion.  

Best to all, 
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
and not victims, who serves the law and not factional purposes, and who approaches his task with humility.” United States Supreme
Court Justice Robert H. Jackson, April 1, 1940
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From: Daniel Burton <danburton@agutah.gov>
To: Lonny Pehrson <lpehrson@agutah.gov>, Spencer Austin <spenceraustin@agutah.gov>, Leo

Lucey <llucey@agutah.gov>, Ric Cantrell <rcantrell@agutah.gov>, Richard Piatt
<rpiatt@agutah.gov>

Subject: RE: Logged: 20-148 Marchman
Date: Mon, 26 Oct 2020 21:56:35 +0000

Importance: Normal

I don’t know that there’s any nuance, is there? Would we treat Tim Ballard any different from OUR?
 
Daniel Burton
Chief of Policy & Legislative Affairs
Office of the Utah Attorney General 
Mobile: 801-386-6830
Follow us on Twitter @UtahAG
-- 
PRIVACY NOTICE: This transmission, from the Office of the Utah State Attorney General, contains information which may be confidential and/or legally
privileged. The information is intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this fax is strictly prohibited and that the documents should be returned to this office
immediately. The unauthorized disclosure, use or publication of confidential or privileged information inadvertently transmitted to you may result in criminal and/or
civil liability.
 
From: Lonny Pehrson <lpehrson@agutah.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2020 2:54 PM
To: Daniel Burton <danburton@agutah.gov>; Spencer Austin <spenceraustin@agutah.gov>; Leo Lucey
<llucey@agutah.gov>; Ric Cantrell <rcantrell@agutah.gov>; Richard Piatt <rpiatt@agutah.gov>
Subject: FW: Logged: 20-148 Marchman
 
Please see the updated request from Mr. Marchman (Muckrock) for emails regarding Tim Ballard.  We sent a denial on
his previous request regarding OUR last Friday, this is his follow up requests.  I would assume we’re treating this the
same as the OUR requests but I just wanted to make sure?
 
From: Shiree Riley <sriley@agutah.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2020 1:56 PM
To: Lonny Pehrson <lpehrson@agutah.gov>
Subject: Logged: 20-148 Marchman
 
Hi Lonny,
 
Are we considering records regarding Tim Ballard to be part of the ongoing investigation of OUR?
 
Sincerely,
 
Shiree Riley
GRAMA Coordinator
Utah Office of the Attorney General
801-281-1286
 
PRIVACY NOTICE: This transmission, from the Office of the Utah State Attorney General, contains information which may be confidential and/or legally
privileged. The information is intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this fax is strictly prohibited, and that the documents should be returned to this office
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

Subject: Fwd: Janet Russon Reading / Prophesy / PowerPoint Requested
Date: Thu, 9 Feb 2023 07:12:06 -0700

Importance: Normal
Attachments: BR-JR-01-00112_the_TROY_prophesy.pdf; BR-JR-01-00113_the_TROY_prophesy.wav

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

What do you think donors would / will do upon learning that deceased ancient Book of Mormon Prophet Nephi
actually runs O.U.R. via Janet Russon to Tim and Katherine Ballard?

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
meeting? I do not think Bryan Purdy will be available or in a reasonable condition to go through it with me this
weekend or even on Monday, but importantly I would like to walk through it with my Investigative Bureau
Chief Craig Webb tomorrow (Sunday) or early Monday morning. Frankly, the powerpoint will be far more
helpful to me than the binder in what I want to discuss with Mr. Webb in a succinct yet informative fashion.  

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
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